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Memorandum 
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WILLW·! ':'udNER MORGAN 

Sometime in September 1962, he met Harold "Buster" Bell 
t:irough a friend of his named Irwin Cahn. He met Bell 
at the hotel. 

Louise Graves was also present at this meeting. -S 

188 Bell gave him a radio on this occasion and an orchid for 
his wif'e. 

Bell ia Benedict's brother-in-law. 7 &. 8 

190 He never met Phil Weiss. 9 

191 Bell came to his house one morning. lu &. lS 

He saw a jury list at his home - the list being published 
on the front page of the paper. 



UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Memorandum 

TO James F. Neal DATE: Narch .,',, 1963 

FROM Nathan lswin NL:sp 

SUBJECT: Hoffa jury tampering -- joinder problems. 

A more exhaustive survey of the case law than was conducted 
in preparation for 11\Y melllOrandurn of March 11, 1963, to Nr. Miller 
convinces me that an indictment following the pattern of Alternative 
V in your memorandum of March 15, 1963, could satisfy Federal Rule 
of Criminal Procedure 8 and could withstand a ::iotion for Severance. 
Since that sort of indictment is closer to the facts which could be 
proved at trial and is not subject to a possible Kotteakos infirmity,
it appears to be the best of the alternatives you have outlined and 

A.

better than any other I can think of. 

The Proposed Indictment.t

Alternative V 'WOUJ.d call for a six-count indictment 
structured pretty much as follows: 

Count I - Hoffa and Kingt - 18 U.S.C. 371t
Count II - Hoffa and Kingt - 18 u.s.c. 150.3t
.Count III - Hoffa, Tweel, and Dorfman - 18 u.s.c. 371t
Count IV - Hoffa, Tweel, and Dorfmant - 18 u.s.c. 150.3t
Count V - Hoffa,· Campbell, and O'Brien - 18 u.s.c. 371t
Count VI - Hotfa, Campbell, and O'Brien - 18 u.s.c. 150.3t

In other words, it would allege three separate conspiracies, in each 
of which Hoffa was a participant, and three separate substantive 
violations of 18 u.s.c. 1503. The common ties which would bind the 
three sets of offenses would be: (l) the common actor -- Hoffa, 
(2)tthe similarity of the offenses, (3) the similarity of purpose -­
to influence a juror in the Hoffa trial, (4) the proximity in time· -­
all taking place arouni the time of the Nashville trial, ani (5) thet
proximity of pl.ace -- all offenses occurring,· at least partly, in andt
around Nashville.t
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B.eExisting case law.e

The leading case� supporting an indictment of the sort 

States, 167 F. 2d 820 (4th Cir. 1948): Scheve v. United States, 
184 F. 2d 695 (D.c.· Cir. 19,50); Kivette v. United States, 230 
F.e2d 749 (5th Cir.), cert. denied, 355 u.s. 935 (1956); United
States v. Rosenfeld, 2J5 F. 2d s44 (?th Cir. ·1956), cert. denied

The others are as follows:

which is outlined above are the following: Catanco v. United 

352 U.S. 928 (1957); Wiley v. United State�, 277 F. 2d 820 (4th
Cir. l96o); Williamson v. United States, 310 F. 2d 192 (9th Cir.e
1962); United States v. Iev, 22 F.R.D. 490 (S.D. N.Y. 19,58). Thee
first two of these casesare discussed at length in my memorandume
of March 11. 

The closest case to the one at bar is United States v. 
Rosenfeld, supra. The case concerned a construction company owned 
by one Cutler, and the indictment charged Cutler with having ma.de 
several false representations of purchasers• credit to the Federal 
Housing Administration. The indictment was in six counts am con­
cerned three separate false representations. As to each, the 
indictment charged a conspiracy betv-ieen Cutler am one of his 
salesmen and the commission of the substantive offense (violation
of 18 U.S.C. 1010) by the alleged conspirators. Consequently, the 
imictment named Cutler and A (i.e., Rosenfeld) in Counts I and II, 
Cutler and B in Counts III and IV, and Cutler and C in Counts V and 
and VI. 1/ -Counts III and IV were severed before trial because �•s 
counsel was not present on the day of the trial. But Rosenfeld's 
motion for severance was denied. The case proceeded to trial on the 
remaining counts (I, II, V, and VI). The jury found Cutler and 
Rosenfeld guilty on Counts I and II, but acquitted all the defendants . 
on the remaining two counts. On appeal, Rosenfeld contended that it 

The 

1/ While the opinion of the Court of Appeals states that Counts V 
and VI named only Cutler and one Robertson, the briefs in the case 
disclose that Count VI, which charged the substantive offense, also 
named one John William Johnson as a co-defendant. Hence it would 
be more ·accurate to say that Cutler arxi Q were named in Count V, and 
that Cutler, Q, and ]2 were named in Count VI. 

was error to try him together with Q (and, presumably, ]2). 
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Court of Appeals rejected this contention, noting that the "gravamen
of the indictment lies in 18 U .s.c. 1010 11 • It quoted Rule 8(b)
which, it said, was "standing re.futation of Rosenfeld's argumnt in 
support of severance or faulty joinder11 The court distinguished • 

its own Tuffanelli opinion (discussed infra) and �fcElroy on the 
ground that 11a clearly discernible pattern of action involving
Cutler and his salesmen is traceable from the face of this record". 
23.5 F. 2d at 54.5. Unfortunately, the court was not mre explicit 
as to why it found that Rule B(b) had been satisfied, but the 
reference to "a clearly discernible pattern" indicates that it 
considered the similarity of the offenses involving a single central 
figure to be sufficient to constitute the "series of acts or trans­
actions" prescribed by Rule 8(b). 

Another decision which is most relevant to the problem
raised here is United States v. I.ev, suora. Lev concerned a :n-count 
indictment in which 8 defenda.ntswre named. 75f the Jl counts, .5 
charged separate conspiracies among two importers and various customs 
inspectors to permit illegal importation and to pay and receive 
bribes. The 26 substantive counts centered on the actual smuggling
and bribery. One of the customs inspectors, named Mandel, was 
connected with only a single instance of smuggling ard one attendant 
bribery. He was namad in only one conspiracy count and in three 
substantive counts. Before trial he moved for a severance of the 
counts in which he was named. Judge Irving Kaufman, then on the 
District Court, denied the motion. He first quoted Rule 8(b)'s • 
language relating to a "series of acts or transactions", and then 
said: 

The instant indictment satisfies these 
requirements. The Government urges that 
the offenses charged are all part of the 
same series of transactions; that the con­
spiracy involving Mandel is coterminous in 
time with the other conspiracies and involves 
the same persons. It is the position of the 
Government, that while technically, five 
separate conspiracies are charged, they all 
flow from the same overall plan or .scheme. 
22 F.R.D. at 491. 

The reasoning used by the Fifth Circuit in sustaining the 
joinder of offenses and defendants in Kivett.a v. United States, 
supra,. also supports the validity of an indictment following the 
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pattern of Alternative V. In Kivetto a 10-count indictmant was 
entered against the Ki vette family on various charges pertaining to 
their possession and sale of moonshine. The indictment was structured 
as follows: 

Counts I and II - Dow Ki vette - Possessing and Transporting
Counts Ill, IV ... Dow Kivette - Possessing, Transporting,

and V and Lima and Selling 
l.ynn Kivette 

Counts VI. Vll, - Billy Joe - Possessing, Transporting, - 7/1/;# 
and. VIll Kivette and Selling 

Counts IX and X - Lima Iqnn - Possessing ard Selling - 7/1/;# 
Kivette 

-

Before trial counts VI, VII and VIII were severed, so that 
only lbw and Li.ma IiYnn (husband and wife) went to trial together on 
the remaining seven counts. No conspiracy count was included in the 
indictment. Nonetheless, on appeal from their convictions on all counts 
except Count II, the Court of Appeals sustained the joinderi 

The appellants' argument that these offenses 
could not be charged in one indictment because 
the sales on different dates were separate
transactions ignores the provision in Rule S(a)
that two or more offenses may be joined in one 
indict?OOnt if they are 1 of the same or similar 
character•. The construction for which appel­
lants contend, i.e., that separate offenses 
cannot be joined unless it is alleged that they 
were part of a continuous transaction or con­
spiracy• •1«>uld in effect read these words out 
of the Rule. 230 F. 2d at 753. 

As for the claim that it was improper to join the defendants� 
since Dow was named separately in Counts I and II and Li.ma Iqnn 
separately in Counts IX and X, the court noted that the concluding 
sentence of Rule S(b) provided that "all of the defendants need not 
be charged in each count". It then reasoned that the problem -was 
how to harmonize the quoted provision with the provision of Rule 8(b)
that joinder is permissible if the defendants participated "in the 

. same series of acts or transactions". Re!ying on Scheve v. United 
States, 184 F. 2d 695 (D.C. Cir. 19.50), which is discussed .fully in 
my memorandum of March 11, the Court of Appeals concluded that 
Rule S(b) permits "joinder of all defendants engaged in a connected 
course of corduct out of which arose separate crimes alleged against 
different persons". 2:,0 F. 2d at 7.53. 
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The court in Kivette could, of course, have reached the 
same result by concluding that Mr. and Mrs. Kivette could have been 
charged with a.conspiracy to violate the revenue laws, and that 
joinder is permissible whenever the substantive offenses charged 
were committed in pursuance of a eeneral scheme or plan, whether 
or not the scheme or plan is separately charged as an offense. 
However, the court did not use this available approach. Instead 
it treated the ir:dictment as if there had been no conspiracy charge 
possible, and sustained joinder merely on a showing that the offenses 
were committed as part of a "connected course of conduct". 

Wilei v. United States. supra, also concerned a family
business, but the commodity in which the family dealt -was marijuana
rather than moonshine. The cast of characters included Jacob Wiley,
Eva Wiley (Jacob's wife), and Christine (their daughter). Trial -was 
had on three counts of a five-count indictment,' the remaining counts 
having been dismissed prior to trial: 

Count II - Jacob and Christine - sale - 6/U/58
Count rv - Eva and Christine - sale - 7/8/58 
Count V - Eva - purchase - 8/18/58 

The defendants, who moved for a severance before trial, were f'ouni 
guilty on all counts. 

On appeal the Fourth Circuit made reference to its then 
recent Ingram decision, 272 F. 2d 567 (4th Cir. 1959) (discussed 
fully in my earlier memorandum), and inferred from it that a refusal 
to sever is reversible.error only if' it amounts to an abuse of' 
discretion. The court then said in conclusionary terms: 

It is plain that there was no abuse of 
discretion in denying the motions for severance 
in the pending case. It was alleged in the 
indictment and proved that the defendants parti­
cipated in the same series of' acts, all of' which 
involved transactions in the transfer or posses­
sion of' marijuana seed during a short period in 
the summer of 1958. The joinder of father ·and 
daughter in the first transaction, the joinder
of mother ar:d daughter in the second transaction, 
and the separate charge against the mother in the 
third transaction fell strictly within the terms 
of' the rule, and there was no prejudice to the 
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three defendants in tryine them toeether 
other than that which necessarily attends 
every joinder of defendants for trial under 
the established procedure. Rule 8, as we • 
have seen, specifically provides that all of 
the defendants need not be charged in each 
count. 277 F. 2d at 824. 

Williamson v. United States, 310 F. 2d. 192 (9th Cir. 1962), 
is important simply because the Court of Appeals there held that 
naming in a single conspiracy count all defendants who are joined 
in the indictment does not alone support the joinder. The court 
denominated this "a misapprehension reflected in the government's 
brief". 310 F. 2d at 197, n. 16. It added: 

Where multiple defendants are involved, -Rule 8(b) 
requires that each count of the indictment arise 
out of 'the sa'iooseries of acts or transactions' 
in which all of the defendants 'have partici­
pated' • ... Since in the present case the conduct 
upon which each of the counts is based was part. 
of a series of factually related transactions 
in which all of the defendants participated, the 
charges were properly joined, although the various 
offenses were distinct and all of the defendants 
were not charged in each count. 

If the approach of Williaw�on is followed, it might not 
avail here to include an overall conspiracy charge in the indictment. 
The court wuld nonetheless look beyond it to see the "factual 
relation" among the defendants and offenses which are joined. 

Finally, another decision in which an alternative holding 
bears upon our situation is Kleven v. United States, 240 F. 2d. 270 
(8th Cir. 1957). Ia.even and Maetzold were charged in a five-count 
indictment with purchase, concealment, and facilitating the trans­
portation of wheat that had been illegally imported from Canada: 

Count I - Kleven - concealment - 12/17/54 
Count II - Maetzold - purchase - 12/17/54 
Count III - Kleven - purchase . - 12/22/54 
Count IV - Maetzold - purchase - 12/22/54 
Count V - Kleven - facilitating transportation - 1/22/55 
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The evidence disclosed that the two of them had made 
arrangements with a Canadian farmer to have the wheat smuggled 
into the United States, and that on each of the first two occasions 
it was unloaded by the Canadian farmer in the presence of both 
Kleven and Haetzold, who purchased the wheat. In January 1955 
IQ.even had caused another shipment to be transported to a third 
purchaser. 

Before trial the defendants had moved to dismiss the 
indict.'llent for improper joinder. The motion was denied. On re·n.ew 
of their convictions, the Court of Appeals held that Federal Rule 
of Criminal Procedure 8 "provides that several defendants may be 
charged in separate counts of a single indictrrent if, as here, the 
defendants are alleged to have p::i.rticipa.ted in the same series of 
acts or transactions cons ti tutine an offense or offenses 11, and it 
held that the joinder was not improper. It is likely, however, that 
this result was affected somewhat by the alternative holding that 
"if the indictment had been subject to attack for misjoinder of 
offenses and defendants -- which we think it was not -- the proper 
remedy would have been a motion for severance under Rule 14 of 
F. R. Cr. P., rather than a motion to dismiss the indictment". 
240 F. 2d at 272.· •• 

An odd decision in the area is United States v. Tuffanelli, 
131 F. 2d 890 (7th Cir. 1942). Tuffanelli and Bonarski were narood, 
along with two others, in a 10-count indictment relating to their 
unlawful moonshine activities. Four of the counts were dismissed 
before trial, but Count X, which alleged a conspiracy among the four 
to commit the substantive offenses enumerated in Counts I through 
IX, remained. All the defendants were named in each count. At the 
trial, three of the defendants were found gull ty on the conspiracy, 
count and on various substantive counts. Apparently, Tuffanelli and 
Bonarski contended that they were improperly joined for trial with 
each other and with the third convicted defendant with respect to 
such substantive counts as failed on appeal for want of evidence. 
(The Court of Appeals reversed Tuffanelli' s conviction on three 
counts for want of evidence and Bonarski's conviction on one count 
for the same reason.) The Court of Appeals rejected their claim by 
a divided vote, and even the majority seemed to entertain some doubt 
as to whether the joinder was proper. Conceding that it did "not 
approve the practice followed in this case", the majority nonetheless 
affirmed the convictions "since all the counts charged closely related 
offenses, based upon a series of transactions constituting a precon­
ceived system and plan to defraud the United States of the revenue 
imposed on distilled liquor". 1:31 F. 2d at 894. 
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Tuffanelli was decided before the Federal Rules of Criminal 
Procedure, and this may explain the court's failure to .advert to the 
obvious fact that if the defendants were foun:i guilty of conspiring 
to commit the substantive offenses, they were properly tried together 
for these offenses. And whatever validity Tuffanelli may have had 
after the promulgation of the Federal Rules was probably sapped by 
Rosenfeld, suora, the rnore recent Seventh Circuit dec.ision. 

The Sixth Circuit has been unfortunately silent on these 
questions. The closest decisions have been Castellini v. United 
States, f:# F. 2d 6.36 (6th Cir. 19JJ), and Ross v. United States, 
197 F. 2d 660 (6th Cir. 1952). Castellini'"was decided before the 
adoption of the Federal Rules, and it involved two indictments which 
were consolidated for trial. The first charged castellini and two 
others with making false entries in the books of a national bank. 
The second charged Castellini and one of the co-defendants in the 
first indictment with misapplying funds belonging to the bank. 
Castellini was convicted on one of the counts in the second indictment 
and was acquitted on all other counts. The Court of Appeals reversed 
his conviction on the ground that it was error to consolidate the 
two indictments. It noted that the defendants were not the same in 
both indictments and that the indictments charged separate and 
distinct offenses. Consequently, the court applied i•!cElrov an:i 
reversed the conviction. While the false entries related to the 
same kind of securities ·with respect to which Castellini ·was charged
with misapplication, the dates of the offenses appear to have been 
different an:i there was no indication that the entries and misappli­
cations were dorn pursuant to a prearranged plan. 

In Ross, the Sixth Circuit distinguished Castellini and 
McElroy and sustained joinder. The case concerned a second trial of 
three defendants who were charged with making false statements in 
F.H.A. applications. At their first trial (which resulted in a 
reversal), two of the defendants were acquitted on certain counts 
as to which the third defendant was convicted. They contended before 
their second trial that it would be prejudicial to join their trials 
with the third defendant, who still had to meet charges on those 
counts. The motion for severance was denied, and on appeal from 
convictions in the second trial the Sixth Circuit affirmed. The 
main ground of affirmance was simply that severance and joinder was 
a matter for the discretion of the District Court, and this was not 
an instance in which such discretion had been abused. The court also 
seemed to rely sorewhat on the notion that where the defendants are 
"closely associated in transactions involving the offense charged",
197 F. 2d at 6f:#, it is proper to join them for trial. 
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C. Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 8 and 14. 

Whether or not Alternative Vis permissible depends, in 
the first instance, on Federal Rule 8, which the cases discussed 
sunra purport to apply. It seems clear that if an indictment were 
filed naming Hoffa·alone, the joinder of offenses would be appro­
priate under the provision of Rule 8(a) permitting joinder of · 
offenses 11of the same or similar character". . Since Hoffa is named 
in all the counts of the proposed indictment, it seems. clear that . 
he would be unable to object to the joinder. The only objection 
could be made by co-defendants who are named 1n only two counts 
and object to being tried along with Hoffa and the others in the 
overall trial. Their claim prior to trial would be that the counts 
in which they are named should.be tried separately because the 
defendants may not be tried together under Rule 8(b). 

I£ these defendants '(e.g., Campbell and O'Brien) are 
working together with fioffa and are concerned with Hoffa's interest -­
as they are likely to be -- they will move to have severed the entire 
counts in which they are named. I£ these motions are granted, the 
result would be that the case against P..offa would be fragmentized 
in an undesirable -way. 1-lhile Rule 14 broadly authorizes the court 
to grant either 11 separate trials of counts 11 or "a severance of 
defendants", and empo1-iers it to "provide whatever other relief 
justice requires". the court may exercise its discretion -- i£ it 
chooses to do so -- in favor of splitting the indictment into three 
separate trials. This would require a separate proceeding for each 
individual endeavor to influence a juror. Since the evidence regarding
each of the three attempts is not overlapping, we would be unable to 
contend that there would be substantial judicial economy 1n trying 
the three attempts together. Some of the witnesses in the various 
cases might be the same, but their testimony would be different in 
each instance. 

For this reason, I think it would be most difficult to 
argue that i£ the defendants• claims of prejudice are valid, they 
alone should be severed -- i.e., that the six counts against Hoffa 
should be tried together in one proceeding and that this be followed 
by three separate cases against his named co-defendants. For it would 
be obvious to the court from the allegations of separate conspiracies 
that each of the three attempts involves distinct proof, and that if 
Hoffa were tried separately, the same evidence that would be �troduced 

https://should.be
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at his trial 'WOuld then be repeated in the separate trials of his 
co-defendants. While severance of the defendants would then protect
them from prejudice, it would require duplication of evidence and 
would be a waste of judicial resources. Consequently, from the point
of view of the court it vrould be most sound -- if joinder is likely
to be prejudicial -- to split the one case into three and try P.offa 
along with each set.of alleged co-conspirators on each attempt. 

Our best chance, therefore, depends on convincing the 
court that joinder is both permis�ible under Rule 8(b) and. not likely 
to be prejudicial under Rule 14. y Rule 8(b) seems to be the easi�r 
of these two hurdles. 

The critical provision in Rule 8(b) which is relevant to 
our problem is that which permits joinder of defendants "if they
are alleged to have participated••• in the same series of acts or 
transactions constituting an offense or offenses". 

'!;./ It should be noted that the mere fact that a particular joinder 
of defendants satisfies Rule 8(b) does not mean that the court is 
powerless to order a severance or separate trial of counts if he 
thinks prejudice is likely to result. �-•, United States v. 
Guterma., 181 F. Supp. 195 (E.D. N.Y. 19 0.� Indeed, the Supreme
Court in United 

trial judge's duty, 
States v. Schaffer, ;62 U.S. ,511 (1960), indicated 

that it is a even where joinder is authorized 
by Rule 8(b), to be on guard during the trial lest one of the 
defendants be prejudiced by being tried together with another 
accused of a separate offense. Hence the problem is a continuing
one and does not abate simply because a Rule 14 motion is once 
denied. 
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In the first place, this language should be contrasted 
with that of Rule 8(a), which permits joinder of offenses "connected 
together or constituting parts of a common scheme or plan". The 
wording of Rule 8(a), insofar as it speaks of a "connnon scheme or 
plan", includes within its scope acts committed pursuant to a 
conspiratorial agreement, but it is not as broad as Rule 8(b)'s
language authorizing joinder for participation in a "series 0£ 
acts". If the draftsmen of Rule 8(b) meant to limit joinder of 
defendants to those who participated in acts committed pursuant to 
a conspiracy in which they were members, 8(b) could have provided -­
as 8(a) does -- for joinder of defendants "alleged to have parti­
cipated ..• in acts or transactions .•• constituting parts of a 
coiltlllon scheme or plan". This Rule 8(b) did not do. Instead it 
provided for joinder of participan'j:.s in a "series of acts", and the 
increased breadth discloses an intention to permit joinder of others 
than were co-conspirators. 

Moreover, the intent of the draftsmen to permit liberal 
joinder when it would not be too prejudicial and would conserve. 
judicial resources also appears from the second sentence of Rule 8(b). 
The provision that i1 all of the defendants need not be charged in 
each count" discloses an intention to permit joinder even when the 
offenses were not committed joint]¥ or in pursuance of a preconceived
plan to which all defendants were parties. For il the sole purpose
of the Rule were to permit only such joinder, the best test of whether 
the joinder was proper would be whether all the defendants could be 
charged in each count. 

The cases construing Rule 8(b) have obviously taken this 
approach. Cataneo, Scheve, Rosenfeld, and Lev seem to be square 
authority in support of the proposition that Rule 8(b) permits a 
joinder of the sort proposed here. And I have found no case in which 
the separate offenses were factually "connected" (by soine tie other 
than place, time, or identity 

Here the 
similar to that in Cataneo, stronger than 

more binding then those in Rosenfeld and 

of a defendant) in which a court has 
held the combined trial to have constituted misjoinder.
obvious factual tie --
that in Scheve, and far 
� -- is the corrnnon purpose of each of the offenses. While each 
may be reduced to a narrow aim -- e.g., to influence-Mrs. Paschal or 
to influence Gratin Fields -- they must be conceded to have had the 
similar goal of improperly influencing the jury panel trying the one 
case. This qualifies them for joinder as surely as the unity of 
purpose qualified the many separate attempts to influence jurors in 
Calvaresi v. United States, 21.6 F. 2d. 891 (10th Cir. 1951), rev'd 
on other grounds, j4a U.S. -961· (1955), as a single conspiracy. 
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This leaves us with the not-too-easy problem of justifying 
a joint trial of the three separate attempts rather than three 
separate trials. Hoffa's co-defendants will all contend that evidence 
pertaining to other jury-tampering attempts of which they had no 
knowledge will unfairly prejudice the jury against them on their 
personal accusations. For reasons stated supra, I find it difficult 
to state a persuasive case for severing out the co-defendants and 
leaving Hoffa to stand trial on six counts. This could only result 
in a duplication of evidence and waste of judicial resources. 
Consequently, I think our best chance is to try to keep all the 
defendants in the case. 

The factual situation in the present case does not present 
as appealing a framework for joint trial as was true in some of the 
other cases discussed suora and in my memorandum of March 11. Unlike 
Scheve and Cataneo, this case is not one in which the evidence 
relating to the commission of one offense would be relevant in 
proving the commission of another. JI wnereas in Scheve it would 
have been proper and desirable to establish what it was that the 
defendant and the victim were doing where they were when the attack 
took place, and this would have related to the gambling charges on 
which his co-defendants were being tried, the Tweel deal would not 
be relevant in proving the Paschal affair or the Parks-Fields approach. 
The same contrast is available with respect to Cataneo. In that case 
the history of Ma.gliano's communications with the Draft Board would 
have been relevant to the charges against the two co-defendants. 
Hence it served the purpose of judicial economy to consolidate the 
charges for trial. 

Here the only evidence that is common to all is evidence 
to which the defendants may well stipulate -- that there was a trial 
in progress in Nashville beginning on October 22, 1962, that Hoffa 
was the defendant, and that twelve identifiable jurors .and four 
identifiable alternates .were selected to hear the case. Consequently,
the only conservation of judicial resources caused by a joint trial 

J/ Unless, as you appear to suggest in your memorandum, evidence of 
!& attempt by Hoffa at jury tampering is admissible in any of these ., 
cases to show intent, plan, design, or absence of mistake. If it 
is, -- and I think it to be highly questionable -- I don't think it's 
the sort of thing which can be urged in opposition to a pretrial
motion for separate trials. 
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is that only one jury need be selected and that only one proceeding,
albeit almost equal in duration to three separate proceedings, need 
be conducted. And, of course, we can maintain that we are protecting 
Hoffa from the harassment of three separate trials by proceeding 
against him and his co-conspirators in one action. (He will probably
be prepared to look this gift horse in the eyeteeth.) 

I think it can be persuasively argued that this economy
of judicial resource is no less than the economy which results when 
a single defendant is jointly tried for having committed offenses 
of "similar character" pursuant to Rule 8(a). Notwithstanding the 
fact that the evidence is not overlapping it is preferable, when 
possible, to combine charges and dispose of all at once. This must 
have been the rationale behind Rosenfeld, .f!y, Kivette, and Wiley. 

. Som solace may be obtained from a principle that has 
seldom been stated but probably does affect District Judges who are 
required to pass on motions under Rule 14. It is that "persons
jointly indicted should be tried together except upon a strong
showing
386 (D.D.C. 1956). Ordinarily, courts will put the burden of proving
that prejudice is. likely on the party seeldng separate trials or 
severance. United States v. Abrams, 29 F.R.D. 178, 181 (S.D. N.Y. 
1961); United States v. Van Allen, 28 F.R.D. 329, 338 (S.D. N.Y. 

of prejudice". United States v. Bowman, 137 F. Supp. 385, 

1961). In the present case, we may contend that careful instructions 
by the trial judge regarding the individuality of an accused's guilt 
can fully safeguard Hoffa I s co-defendants. 

D. other Alternatives.· 

I think that Alternative Vis preferable to the others you 
enumerate or any that I can think of, even though it presents the 
undesirable possibility of three separate trials. The problems with 
the others are as follows: 

Alternative I - Hoffa's co-defendants are not tried for 
conspiracy, as they deserve to be. Moreover, although I do not agree 
that the conspiracy count in which only Hoffa is named is duplicitous,
that claim may be raised. And since you and Charlie Shaffer seem to 

• be convinced by it (notwithsi:,anding cases to the contrary)•· the judge 
, may be too. 
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Alternative II - This would be subject to a r:otteakos 
attack by the co-defendants if they are convicted of conspiracy. 
Furthermore, if the judge is convinced that because of Kotteakos 
the case should not go to the jury, he may think that there was a 
misjoinder, a la the dissent in Schaffer. 

Alternative III - Why omit a conspiracy charee if they were, 
in fact, guilty of conspd.racy7 

Alternative IV - Even if we are required to elect before 
the case goes to the jury, Hoffa will claim that the indictioont was 
multiplicitous and he didn't know what to defend against. The co­
defendants will also claim that their being named in the general 
conspiracy count contused them. 

Alternative VI - Sa..'!le problems as Alternative IV plus the 
Kotteakos difficulty.or Count I. 

I have also considered the desirability of filing an 
indictment against Hoffa alone on six counts ani against the groups 
of co-conspirators separately, and then asking that all be consoli­
dated. This would put the shoe on the other foot by making the 
Government the moving party. We could then contend that a joint 
trial would conserve judicial resources because evidence would only 
have to be presented once. On the other harrl, the. individual 
co-conspirators would claim that prejudice is likely, ani they 
might be right. Moreover, I think there is an advantage to putting 
Hoffa to trial together with his unsavory associates, ani the 
likelihood of this happening is greater if all are indicted together. 

https://difficulty.or
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It is the purpose of this memoraqqur§1 t� 
summarize the salient evidence developed by11F�.�;
and Grand Jury investigations and covered in sepa­
rate memoranda entitled Paschal., Tweel-Hall and 
Fields., 

1 and to point out the strengths and weak­
nesses of an indictment and prosecution covering
all of these transactions. 

The indictment would be in six counts: 
Counts One and Two would charge Hoffa and Ewing
King with conspiracy to obstruct justice and ob­
struction of justice (Title 18 ., United States Code ., 
Sections 371 and 1503}; Counts Three and Four would 
charge Hoffa ., Dorfman and Nicholas Tweel with con­
·spiracy to obstruct Justice and obstruction of jus­
tice; and counts Five and Six would charge Hoffa ., 
Thomas Parks and Larry Campbell with conspiracy to 
obstruct justice and obstruction of Ju�tice. 

Evidence relating to all counts would 
come from the most important witness in the case., 

1. For detailed analysis refer to the separate
memoranda. 
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C.I., who would testify to statements made to him, 
·or in his presence, by Hoffa showing Hoffa's plans 
to reach jurors through the use of subordinates,
and of these plans as they developed. These state­
ments, if believed, establish that Hoffa had knowl­
edge of, encouraged and aided the various endeavors 
to reach the Jurors. c.I. would also testify to 
statements made to him by King, Dorfman and other 
Hoffa associates. Evidence relevant to all ap­
proaches would also be available from court attend­
ants to establish the existence of the proceedings
against Hoffa, the identity of the jurors and pro­
spective·jurors and the close association between 
Hoffa and the subordinates who made the approaches, 
e.g., King and Dorfman. Witnesses and photographs 
are available also to show this association as well 
as the close association between Hoffa and C.I. 
One witness can testify to observing King and Hoffa 
in several private conversations and to the fact 
that C.I. was so close to Hoffa during the trial 
that he was given the job of guarding the door to 
Hoffa's suite in the Andrew Jackson Hotel. 

Where relevant, telephone and hotel rec­
ords are available to corroborate testimony of C.I. 
and others. 

Evidence to support Counts One and Two 
would come from F.B.I. agents (who conducted the 
surveillance of King and George Broda), Patrolman 
James Paschal, Oscar 11Mutt" Pitts, Paul Tenpenny and . 
Robert Wilkerson, and would establish clearly that 
Ewing King approached Patrolman Paschal. and offered 
to help get him a promotion in the Tennessee Highway
Patrol if he would induce his wife, then serving as 
a juror, to vote for acquittal of Hoffa. 

As to Counts Three and Four, Dallas Hall 
would testify that Nicholas Tweel approached him 
and offered to make it worth his while if he would 
effect an approach to a juror. C.I. would testify 
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to conversations and actions among Tweel, Dorfman· 
and Hoffa directed to this end, and the testimony
of C.I. and Hall would be corroborated by telephone 
and hotel records and, in part, by the testimony of 
such individuals as employees of the Louisville and 
Nashville Railroad. 

Evidence related to Counts Five and Six 
would come from earl Fields, Jack Walker, Matttie 
Leath and Emma Fields. This testimony would clearly 
establish approaches to members of Juror Fields' 
family by· Thomas Parks who, according to Parks' 
statement to Carl Fields, was reporting to a per-
son in Louisville. Larry Campbell's connection with 
this endeavor would come from Mrs. Mattie Nix of 
N�shville and Ernestine Williams of Louisville, and 
from telephone and hotel records, all of which would 
show that Campbell was. in telephonic contact with 
Parks from Louisville. Hoffa and Campbell would be 
implicated by the testimony of C.I. who would tes­
tify Hoffa told him he had the Negro Juror in his 
hip pocket and the approach was being made through 
his, Hoffa's, Negro business agent, a man named 
Campbell 

. As might be expected, there is ample evi­
dence that the above endeavors to corrupt Justice 
were made. An impartial Jury would surely believe 
King had made an unlawful approach to Patrolman 
Paschal, that some effort, perhaps half-hearted, 
had,been made to get Dallas Hall to effect an im­
proper approach to a Juror and that Parks had en­
deavored to obstruct Justice by his approaches to 
the family of Juror Fields. However, as might be 
expected, the evidence grows weaker as the mental 
eye searches for the for.ce or forces behind these 
approaches. Yet it seems likely an impartial jury
would suspect that someone was behind the contact 
men. It would be the duty of Government counsel to 
make that ·eye rest upon none.other than James R. 
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Hoffa by showing his close. association with the 
contact men prior to and during the trial, and by
maintaining the apparent truth that he had the most 
to gain by the success of these endeavors. This 
would set the stage for the most important witness. 

Direct evidence linking Hoffa with these 
approaches comes from one person. This person is 
described in this and the other memoranda as C.I., 
a close associate of Hoffa. His close association 
with Hoffa throughout the trial, and therefore, his 
access to the type of information to which he will 
testify, will not be subject to serious doubt. Yet 
this man, with his own questionable record, will 
have to carry most of the weight of the Government's 
case against Hoffa. The manner in which he testi­
fies on direct examination and withstands perhaps
the most vigorous of cross-examinations will likely
determine the outcome of the trial, in so far as 
Hoffa is concerned. The success of this man's 
testimony will, in turn, depend in large part on 
how perfectly prepared he is and by the adroit use 
of corroborative records relating to his activities 
and associations with Hoffa during the trial. These 
records will consist of telephone company 11mark 
sense" cards establishing that a call was made when 
he said it was ma�e and that he was in the Andrew 
Jackson Hotel when he said he was, and of photo­
graphs showing him with Hoffa and other contact 
men, such as King and Dorfman, during the progress
of the trial. 

The case has certain obvious advantag�s-­
the crimes are recent, local ��d reprehensible, and 
the offenses and testimony are easy to comprehend . 

. 

2. While insignificant legally, the impact of the 
case would be greater if we had proof of success 
of any of. these endeavors. 
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Equ�lly important, the investigation was ordered 
by a judge, not the Department of Justice. All of 
which restricts the scope· for the arguments ad­
vanced with such impact 1n the recently concluded 
trial. Another advantage, as pointed out in the 
recent meeting in the Attorney General's office, 
is that it is easier to believe the testimony that 

·Hoffa was behind these endeavors if more than one 
close associate is shown to have been involved. 

The disadvantages of the case are just 
as obvious--Hoffa's involvement rests upon the tes­
timony of one witness, corroborated as he is by the 
fact that it was Hoffa on trial and by the fact that 
the men making or handling the approaches were his 
close associates. Another disadvantage is in the 
use made of C.I. by the Government during the pre­
vious trial. It•is through this that the defense 
may be able to introduce the vendetta argument.
Other possible disadvantages are the danger of a 
substantial continuance or change of venue under 
Rule 2l(a), F.R. Cr. P., an� the possibility of 
severance of the counts under Rule 14, F.R. Cr. P. 

Should these offenses be tried together,
approximately thirty witnesses would be called. 
Eleven or twelve of these would merely produce rec­
ords. The Government's case, including selection 
of the jury, would consume approximately fifteen 
days. This, of course, would be a disadv�ntage
compared with trial of the Paschal approach alone, 
which would involve approximately ten witnesses and 
consume, including sel'ection of the jury, approxi-
mately eight days. 



2 .. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR 
TUE HIDDLE DISTRICT O.Ii' TElnffiSSEE 

NASIIVILLE DIVISION 

.... .. ..  .. .. ..  ... .. . ..  _ _ _ _ ._ 

tnII'illD STATL'S OF A}::E.nICA 
Plaintif£ 

v,. Crim1na.l No.
-----

ALLE:J rorrnw1 
JAl,ili,3 R. HOFFA 
NIC!!OL!.S J. TWEEL 
Et·ffi;Q KDfil 
LA.ll.t1Y CAHPDEIL 
THO: iAS EWING P.\nK3
FREDmnaus 

Defendants 

Tho Grand Jury cb.!.rgos: 

l.i The.t f'rom on or a.bout September l, 1962,i

up to and including Deioemhcr 22, 1962, 1n the Hiddlo District 

of Tennessoo, Nashville D1viaion, arA el5owharo,·ALLEN 

.OORFHA!l, Jlll·l:CS R. HOF.FA, and rCTCHOU!.G J. �.1EEL, defendants 

harein.1 did unla't'd\llly, wi'J.£ully and kncmingly comb1na, 

conspire, eonf'ederate and agree together, and with diverse 

other parsons whose names to the Grand Jury are unknown, 

to commit o££ensoa 0.{;8.inst the Unit:,1 Statos, to wit: to 

violate Title 18, United States Coda, Section 1$03, in that 

the said defendants and co-conspirators did eombino, conspire, 

confederate and agree together corruptly to endeavor to 

infiuence, obstruct and impcdo the duo administration ot 

justice in tho United Statos District Court fo� the Middle 

District or Tonnessoo, Na.ahvillo Division. 

That it was p.,.rt of �� ... -: con:;piraoy corrupt.ly 

https://corrupt.ly
https://LA.ll.t1


jurors who, on October 2S, 1962, h:ld bc:n impaneled in the 

United States District Court for tho ?Uddlo District ot 

Tennessee, Nashville Division, in th& ca.so 0£ Unitod St...�tes v. 

Jamos R. Hoff'a and Commercial Cnrriors, Inc:. (Criminal Mo. 

13,241), -with respoct to tha ea.id juror.:.• actions, votes, 

opinions and decisions concerning the ::.<"Lid trial b0for(3 

tho return ot- the verdict. 

3. Th.at 1 t was a .further part of said conspiracyt

to learn the identity or persons who woro acquainted with 

petit jurors who, on October 25, 1962, had been impaneled 1n 

the said ca.so, and of parsons who could, by communication 

with the said petit jurors, in:f'luence, inti.�idate and impede 

tho aa1d petit jurors in the discha.r� ot their duties in the 

said ca.so. 

OVERT ACTS· 

In furtherance or the naid conspiracy and to effoct 

the objects thereof, tho said defendants and co-conspirators 

committed, 8Jl1Qng others, the following overt act:u 

l.t On or about Oatober 21, 1962, in the Hiddlot
. I

District of Tennossae, Na.shville Division, tlICHOLI\S J., '.r.-IEEL, 

a defendant herein, registered at and took a room in the 

Andrew Ja.ckaon Hotel in Na:mville, Tennessee. 

2.t On or about October 22, 1962, in the l11ddlot

District ot Tennessee, Nashville Division, NICHOLAS J. 'I'WEEL, 

a defendant heroin, had a converS.1tion with Dallas lfall. 

3. In or about the month or November 1962, int

the Southern District of Went Virginia, NICllOLAS J. W..illL, a 

dofendant herein, made a telephone call to Dallas Hall, who 



was then within the H1ddle District ot 'l'ennesaee., lfashville 

Division. 

4. On or about November 27, 1962, in the MiddleD

District or Tennessee, Nashville D1viaton, AI.tEN OORFl1.\.M and 

JAMES R. HOFFA, detondants herein, entered tho Louisville and 

Nashville Railroad Union Station loca.tod at Tenth Street and 

Broadway in Nashville, Tennessee. 

S. On or abou\ Uovember 27,. 1962, in the SouthernD

District of West Virginia, NICHOLAS J. TtJ'EEL, a. defendant 

herein, ma.de a te�ephone call to Dallas Hall, who was t.,.'len 

within the Middle District or Tennessee, Nashville Division. 

(Title 18,- United States CodeD Section .371.)., 

comr.r TWO 

The Grand Jury further charges: 

That on or o.bout Novmnber 27, 1962, in the So"Uthern 

District of West Virginia and in the.Middle District or 

Tennessee, !lashville DiviSion, ALLE?i OORFMAN, JAMES R. HOFF.A 
., . 

and NICHOUS J. TWEEL, defendants herein, did unlawtully, 

knowingly, t-111.tttlly and corruptly endeavor to infiuenr.ut;r:o'Bstruct 

and impede the due adm1nietrat1on of justice in the United 

Zsts.tas Distriot Court tor the Middle_: District �£ Tennessee, 

·D 'Nashville Division, 1n that the said defendants did o£rer a.D

thing ot value and a bribe to Dallas Hall for the purpose ot 
f 
·-,, 

cauair.g the said Dallas Hall .to laarn the identity of persons 

who c-.ould communicate with petit jurors theretofore blpanelud 

in tho United States Di·atrict Court tor the Middle Dist.riot 

ot Tennessee, Nashville Division, in the case·of ·United States v. 

James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 

13,241), with respect. to the said jurors' ttona. votes, 



op:t.niona and decisions concerning the ae.id trial be.tore the 

Ntt\lru of the verdict. 

(Title 18• United States Code, Section 1$03.) 

COM ,:4HREE 

The Grand Jury further ohal'geea 

1.n That 1'ro1ll on o:r about September 1, 1962, up ton

and including December 6, 1962, 1n the Middle Diatrict or 

Tennessee, Nashville D1via1on, JAMES R. HOFFA and EWilID KOO, 

defendants heroin, and Oeorgo Broda, t,sear V. Pitts, Paul B. 

Tenpeney, and Robert WUkerson, co-conepirators but not 

defendants herein, did�, wiltttl.ly, and tmowingl.7 

eombine, conspire, contederate and agree together, all'J w1th 

diverse other per.ions whON names to the Orand Jury are unknown, 

to commit ottenaea against the Un1ted States, to wits to 

. violate Title 18, United States Code, Section 1503, 1n that 

the said defendants and co-oonspi:ratora did combine, oon&pire, 

aonf'aderate and agree corruptly to endeavor to i�uence, 

intimidate and 11ftpede a pet1t juror of the United States 

Distriot Court tor the Middle District ot Tennessee, Nubville 

Division, in the diaoharge (?f hor dut;r. 

2.n That it was part of said conapirac:r com:it,tl.7n

to endeavor to tnf'luenoe, intimidate and !mpade, in the discharge 

ot her duty as a petit juror ot the United States District 

Court, Mrs.. Jamaa M. Paschal, wbO on o:ro abou\ Ootober 25, 1962• 

was sworn as Regular Juror Numbez- 9 for the trial of United 

States v, James R. Hoffa and CoJm118rOial Carriers: Inc. (Crim1nale
t---, I 

?fo. 13,2Ja), ln the Un1ted States Dutrict Court tor the Middle 

D1str1ot of Tano.oasee; Nashville Division, aa the said defendants 

and co-conspirator, then and thore well knew. 



:,. That 1t was further pan ot said conspiracy 

tbati maNO xmo, a da.tendant herein, meet with James M. Paschal, 

the husband ot the ,said Mrs. James M. Paschal, and that the 

said D-mlO ICING offer to Jamos M. Paschal a thing of value and 

a br1be for the purpose ot causing ea.id James M. Paschal to 

intluenoe, intimidate and irnpede the e1d Mrs. Ja.mes.M. Paschal 

in the discharge of her duty as a pet1t juror. 

OVERT ACTS 

In fm'therance ot the ea1d oonsp1racy and to etteot 

the objeota thereof', the said def'endants and co-conspirators 

in the Middle D1strict of Tennessee, Nashville Division, 

comnd.tted1 among others, the following overt aots1 

1.n On or about October 27, 1962, lllvING KJNO,n

a de1"endant-here1n, drove to the residence ot Oecnr V. Pitts, 

a oo-conapirator but not a defendant herein, which 1a located 

in or arouad Woodbur;r, Tennessee. 

2.n On or about November 6, 1962, EWING KING, an

defendant herein, bad a conversation with Paul B. Tenperm,y, 

a oo-oonepirator but not a dei"endant herein. .
' 

' 

J.n On or aboUt .... Fovember 17, 1962, &mm KING, 

a defendant herein; and George Broda,· a co-conspirator but not 

a delonda.nt herein, exohanged automobiles with ea.oh other. 

,4. On or about-November 18, 1962,. 06� v. Pitta, 

a co-conspirator but not a defendant herein, drove to the 

home of James M. Paechal ln Woodbur.,, Tennesseo, 1n an auto­

mobile belonging to George Broda, a cc>-conspirator but not a 

defendant herein. 

https://delonda.nt


$. On oi- about No� 18, 1962, in the vicidt7 

of Woodbury, Tennessoe, EWING KING, a de.fendant herein,. met 

James M. Paechal, the husband ot Mre. James M. Paschal, and 

. had a conversation With tho said Jame.a M. Paschal. 

(Title 18, United Sta.tea Code, Section 371.) 

COUNT FOUR 

The- Grand Jury- further cha.rgea, 

l.e That on or abou; NQVember 18� 1962, in the Middlee

District of Tenne:ssee, Nashville Division, JANES R. HOFFA and 

»JING KDlO, detendanta herein, did unlawfully, knowingly and 

corrup-w.y ecdea.vor to 1nnuen00, intimidate and impede a petit 

juror or the United Sta.tea District Court in the discharge 

ot her duty, to wits Mrs. Jamee M. Paschal who, then was,.tand 

was then and there known to the said defendants to be, serving 

·as a petit juror 1n the case ot United States v. James R. Hot.fae

and Comm.eroial Carriorse
a 

Inc. (CriDd.nal No. 13,241), in that thee

sa1d EWING mo, a defendant herein• d1d meet with Jamaa M.e

Paschal, the husband of the said M�. James M. Paschal, and dide

otter to Jamee M. Paschal a thing ot value and a. bribe tor thee

purpose of causing said James M. Paschal to influence; intimidatee

and impede the said Mrs. James, M. Paschal in the diaobarge ot 

her duty as a petit juror. 

2.e That 1n or about the months ot October ande

November 1962• in the Middle District. sjf Tennessee, !la.shville 

Division, JAMES R. HOWA, a d&Eondant heroin., did unlawtully, 

knowingly, wil!ully and corruptly aid, abet, counsel,, coimnand 
J 



induce and prooure the said maNO Kll-JG, a detecd.ant herein, 

corruptly to endeawr to 1n1"1.uanoe, intimidate and impede the 

eaid Mra. Jamoa M. Paschal ,mo then was and was known to 

the said JAMES R. HOFFA to be, on the peti t jury venire of 

the United States District Court for tho Middle District� 

Tennessee, NAshville Division, trom which petit jurors were 

to be selected for the trial ot United States v. James n. 

Hatta and Commorcial Carriers1 Inc. (Criminal No. 13,241), 

1n the discharge other duty with respect to the said trtal. 

(Title 18, Uni� States Code, Sections 2 and 1503.) 

COUNT FIVE 

- The Grand Jury chargos st

1.t That from on or about Septernber., l, 1962, upt

to and including December 20, 1962, in the. Middle Distriot 

of Tennessee, Nashville Division, and elset'lbere; JAMES R. 

HOFFA, LARRY CAMPBELL, THCMAS nmro PARKS, and FRED JmKINS, 

detendanta herein, and James T. Walker and Carl Fields, 

co-conspirators but not defendants herein, did unlaw.tul.ly, 

wlli'ull.y ard knowingly combine, conDPir& and confederate 

and agree together, and with diverse othor persons.whose 

nmnes to the Orand Jury are unknown, to c�mmit of'f'enses 
·-----

against the United States, to wit.1 'to violate Title 18,t

Un1tod States Code, Section 1$03, in that the eaid de.f'enda.ntat

and co-conspirators did combine, conspire� confederate o.ndt

agree COlTUPtly to endeavor to intl.uence, intimidate andt

impede a petit juror� t.ha United states District Courtt

for the Middle District ot Tennessee, Nashville Division,t

in the discharge of his dutT.t

- 7 -
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2.o That it was part ot said conspiracy corruptlyo

to endoavor to tnrl.uanco, in-t;im1dato and impedo 1n the 

discharge of his duty as a petit; juror ot the United States 

District Court, Gratin Fields, who on or a.ballt October 25, 

19621 \.'a.G aworn a:s Regular Juror Nu.:.bor l2 f'or the trial 

of United States v. Jamoo R. Itof'fa and COl?!llerc;ial Carriors1I 

Inc. (Criminal No. 13.,241), 1n the United States Dictrict 
-

Court tor the Middlo District ot Tennessee, NAshville Division, 

as tho said defendants and co-conspirators then and there 

well knew. 

J.o It was .turthor part, or said conspiracy thato

JAMES R. HOWA, a defendant hero1� caused IARRY CA?ll'BELL, 

a do!end3.nt herein, to cause TllOM.iS .amm PAIL"CS., a 

defendant herein, to ofter to members ot the family or 

Ora tin Field a, a thing of value and & bribe tor the purpose 

or 1ntluencing, "tnUa"l:allting and impodi.ng the s:iid Cratin 

Fields in the discharge of his duty u a petit juror. 

•o OVEnT ACTSo

IQ f'Urthornaoe � said conap1ra.ey ·and to arroct 

the objects thereof', tbB said defendants and co-coruspiratora 

comitted, among othe:rs, the f'ollo\ling overt actsz 

1.o On or about October 22., 1962, 1n theo

We:ste:rn DJ.strict or Kentucky', IARRY CAMPBELL, & de!end�nt 
. _... 

... ' 
♦ .

herein, placed a call to Ci' 1-8644, � telephono located 

1n lw.shv1lle, Tennessee. 

https://conap1ra.ey
https://impodi.ng
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). In w about the months of October and 

November 1962, 1n the Middle D1:Jtric1i ot Tennessee, Naehville 

Diviaion, James T. Walker, a co-conepix-ator herein, bad a 

conversation with Carl Fields, in or about the premises of 

1900 Meharry Boulevard, llaahville, Tennessae. 

�. In or about tho months of October and 

November 1962, in the Middle District ot Tennessee, Nashville 

Diviaion, THCHAS E}JING PARKS, & defendant harein and 

James T. Walker, a co-conspirator heroin, were present in 

or about the premise, of the J. c. Napior Community Center 

located 1.n·Naahville, 'l'ennessoe. 

S. In or about the months or Ootobel" and,

November 1962, in.the Middle District of Tennesseo, Naahville 

Division, James T. Walker, a co-coMpirator herein• bad a 

oonvorrsat1ot'l With Y.att-ie L®tb, in or about the premises 

ot the J,, C. Napier Community Center located in Nashville, 

Tennessee. 

6 .. In or about the month of November 1962, 

in the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, 

FRED mt-ems� a defendant herein, placed a call to AL 6-1223, 

a t�phone l.oca�ed in NaJJbvUle, �enri'essee, and ha.d a ,. 

te'... ephone conversation vi.th Carl Fields, a co-conspirator 

herein, 

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.) 

COUNT SIX 

Thf» Grand Ju:ey- turther charges: 

l., That, in or about the months of October, November,

and December 1962, in the Middle District ot Tennessee, 
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Nashville Division, JAMES R. HOFFA, LARRY CAMPBELL, THCt!AS 

ll.WINC PARKS and FRED JENKINS, detondant.e herein, d1d un­

lawMl;r, knowingly and col"nlptly endeavor to infiuonce, 

1nt1tl1da.ta and inlpode a petit juror ot tho United Statos 

District Court in the discharge of his duty, to 'Witz Gratin 

Fields, who then_ was, and was �en and there known to the 

said de£endanta to ba, serving as a pet1t juror in the case 

ot United Stn·�os v. James R. Hoff'a and Commercial Carriers, 

Ino. (Criminal No. lJ.241)., in. that the said TIICI·!AS m,]ING
-

PARKS, a dc.t'o11dnnt horoin, did tueet with Carl Fields, the 

son ot the said Oratin Fields, and did ofter to Carl Fields, 

a thing of value and a bribe tor the purpose ot ca.UD1ng 

said Carl Fields to influence, intimidate and impede the 

said Oratin Fields 1n the discharge or his duty as a potit 

juror. 

2.e That 1n or about the _months· of' October,e

November and December 1962, in tho Middle District ot 

Tennessee, Na�bville Diviaion, and elsowhore, JAMES, R. 

HOF.FA, a de.fendant herein, did unlAtd.ull.y, knowingly, 

wU.ful.1.y and corruptly aid� abe\, counsel, conmiand, induce 

am' procure the Aid TH(l-!AS El·IING �ARKS, a defendant herein• 

corruptly to endeavor to 1ntluence, intimidate ruid impedo 

the �id Oratin Fields,, who then wae and was known to the 

aa1d JAHES R. UO.FFA to be, on the petit jury venire or the 

United States District Court tor the Middle Dist:rict ot 

Tennessee, MashvUlo Division, .tram which patit jurors wore 

to be aelected tor the triAl ot United States v. James R. 

Hoffa.and Commcret.al Oarriera1 Inc. (Criminal No. 13,241), 

-10 • 
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in the discharge ot his duty with respect to the said trial. 

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2 and 1503.) 
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UNTIED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR 
THE MIDDLE DISTJICT OF TENNESSEE 

NASHVILLE DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF ANERICA 
Plaintiff 

v. Criminal No. 
------

HENRY F. BELL 
WILLIAM TURNER MORGAN 

Defendants 

COUNT ONE 

The Grand Jury charges: 

1. That from on or about September 10, 1962, 

. up to and including October 25, 1962, in the Middle District 

of Tennessee, Nashville. Division, HENRY F. BEU, and 

WIIJ.,IAM TURNER MORGAN, defendants herein, and Irwin Cahn, 

a co-conspirator but not a defendant herein, did unlaw­

fully, wilfully and knowingly combine, conspire, confederate 

and agree together, and with diverse others whose names 

t9 the Grand Jury are unknown, to commit offenses against 

the United States, to wit: to violate Title 18, United 

States Code, Sections 206 and 1503. 

2. That it was part of said conspiracy corruptly 

to endeavor to influence, intimidate and impede a petit juror 

of the United States District Court for the.Middle District 

of Tennessee, Nashville Division, in the discharge of his 

'duty, to wit: William B. Morgan, who then was, and was 

then and there known to HENRY F. BELL and WILLIAM TURNER 

MORGAN, derendants herein, to be, on ·the petit jury venire 



from which petit jurors were to be selected for the trial 

of United States v. James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, 

Inc. (Criminal No. 13,241). 

3. That. it was further part of said conspiracy 

to give, offer, and promise money, thing of value, and a 

bribe to William B. Morgan, who then was, and was then and 

there known to HENRY F. BELL and WILLIAM TURNER HORGAN, 

defendants herein, to be, on the petit jury venire of the 

United States District Court for the Middle District of 

Tennessee, Nashville Division, from which petit jurors were 

to be selected for the trial of United States v. James R. 

Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 13,241), 

with intent to influence the said William B. Morgan's action, 

vote, opinion, and decision respecting the said trial. 

OVERT ACTS 

In furtherance of the said conspiracy and to effect 

the objects thereof, the said defendants and co-conspirators 

in the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, 

committed the following overt acts: 

1. On or about September 24, 1962, HENRY F. BELL, 

a defendant herein, registered and took a room at the 

Hemitage Hotel. in Nashville, Tennessee. 

2. On or about September 26, 1962, Irwin 
I 

Cahn, a co-conspirator but not a defendant herein, at the 

request of HENRY F. BELL, a defendant herein, made a telephone 

call from the Hemitage Hotel to the offices of the Nashville 

• Banner. 

r 
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3. On or about October 16, 1962, HENRY F. 

BELL, a defendant herein, registered and took a room at the 

Hermitage Hotel in Nashville, Tennessee. 

4. On or about October 20, 1962, HENRY F. 

BELL, a defendant herein, went to the house of WILLIA.i� 

TURNER MORGAN, a defendant herein, located at or near Granny 

White Pike, in Brentwood, Tennessee. 

5. On or about October· 21, 1962, WILLIAM 

TURNER HORGAN, a defendant herein, made a telephone call 

to William B. Morgan, who was then a prospective petit juror 

in the trial of United States v. James R. Hoffa and Commercial 

Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 13,241). 

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.) 

COUNT TWO 

The Grand Jury further charges: 

1. That on or about October 21, 1962, in the Middle 

District of Tennessee, Nashville· Division, WILLIA.M TURNER 

MORGAN, a defendant herein, did unlawfully, knowingly, wilfully 

and corruptly endeavor to influence, intimidate and impede a 

petit juror of the United States District Court in the discharge 

of his duty, to wit: William B. Morgan, who then was, and was 

then and there known to WILLIAM TURl'illR HORGAN, a defendant herein, 

to be, on the petit jury vcnire of the United States District 

Court for the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, 

from which petit jurors were to be selected.for the trial of 

United States v. 'James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. 

(Criminal No. 13,241). 
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2. That in or about tho months of September and 

October 1962, in the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville 

Division, and elsewhere, HENRY F. BELL, a defendant heroin, 

did unlawfully, knowin�ly, wilfully and corruptly aid, abet, 

counsel, command, induce and procure the said WILLIA11 TURNER 

MORGAN, a defendant herein, corruptly to endeavor to influence, 

intimidate and impede the said William B. Morgan, who then 

was, and was known to the said HENRY F. DELL to be, on the 

petit jury venire of the United States District Court for 

the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, from 

which petit jurors were to �e selected for the trial of 

United States v. James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. 

(Criminal No. 13,241), in the discharge of his duty with 

regard to the said trial. 

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2 and 1,03.) 

COUNT THREE 

The Grand Jury further charges: 

1. That on or about October 21, 1962, in the Middle 

District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, WILLIAM TURNER 

MORGAN, a defendant herein, did unlawfully, knowingly, and 

wilfully offer, promise and agree to pay money, thing of 

value, and a bribe, to wit: the sum of twenty-five thousand 

dollars, to William B. Morgan, who then was, and was then and 

there known to WILLIAM TURNER MORGAN to be, on the petit jury 

venire of the United States District Court for the Middle 
' 

. 

District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, from-which petit 

jurors were to be selected for the trial of United States v. 

James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 13,241), 
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with intent to influence the action, vote, opinion, and decision 

of the said William B. Morgan in the said trial. 

2. That in or about the months of September and 

October 1962, in the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville 

Division, and elsewhere, HENRY F. BELL, a defendant herein, 

did unlawfully, kno�ngly, and wilfully aid, abet, counsel, 

command, induce and _procure the said WILLIAM TURNER MORGAN 

to offer, promise and agree to pay money, thing of value and 

a bribe to William B. Morgan, who then was, and was then and 

there known to HENRY F. BELL, a defendant herein, to be, on 

the petit jury venire of the United States District Court for 

the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, from which 
. ) 

petit jurors were to be selected for the trial of United States v. 

James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal 

No. 13,241), with intent to influence the said William B. 

Morgan's action, vote, opinion and decision in the said trial, 

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2 and 206.) 

COUNT FOUR 

The Grand Jury further charges: 

That in or about the months of October and November. 

1962, in the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, 

HENRY F .. BELL, defendant herein, did unlawfully, knowingly, 

wilfully and corruptly endeavor to influence, obstruct and 

impede the due administration of justice in the United States 

District Court for the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville 

Division, in that the said HENRY F. BELL, defendant herein, 

did offer a sum of money to Nathan Bellamy and did endeavor 

- 5 -



to cause the said Nathan Bellamy to influence, intimidate, and 

impede petit jurors who had theretofore been impaneled in the 

United States District Court for the Middle District of 

Tennessee, Nashville Division, in the case of United States v. 

James R, Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 

13,241), with respect to the discharge of the said petit 

jurors' duties in the said case. 

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 1503.) 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR 
THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF TENNESSEE 

NASHVILLE DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
Plaintiff 

v. Criminal No.
-------

LAWRENCE W. MEDLIN 
Defendant 

COUNT ONE 

The Grand Jury charges: 

That on or about October 2), 1962, in the Middle 

District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, LAWRENCE W. MEDLIN, 

the defendant herein, did unlawfully, knowingly and wilfully 

of.fer, promise, and agree to pay money, thing of value, and a 

bribe, to wit: ten thousand dollars, to James C. Tippens, who 

then was, and was then and there known to LAWRENCE W. MEDLIN, 

the defendant herein, to be, on the petit jury venire of the 

United States District Court .for the Middle District of Tennessee, 

Nashville Division, from which petit jurors were to be selected 

.for the trial of United States v. James R. Hof.fa and Commercial 

Carriers Inc. (Criminal No. 13,241), with intent to influence, 

the ac_tion, vote, opinion, and decision of James C. Tippens 

in the said trial. 

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 206.) 

COUNT TWO 

The Grarxi Jury .further charges: 

That on or about October 23, �962, in the Middle 

District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, LAWRENCE W. MEDLIN, 



the defendant herein, did unlawfully, knowingly, wilfully, .and 

corruptly endeavor to influence and impede a petit juror of the 

United States District Court in the discharge of his duty, to 

wit: James C. Tippens, who then was, and was then and there 

known to LAWRENCE W. MEDLIN, the defendant herein, to be, on 

the petit jury venire of the United States District Court for 

the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, from which 

• peti t jurors were to be selected for the trial of United 

States v. James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal 

No. lJ,241). 

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 150.3.) 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COUR� FOR 
THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF TENNESSEE 

NASHVILLE DIVISION 

UNrrED STATES OF AMERICA 
Plaintiff' 

v. Criminal No.
-------

ALBERT P. COLE 
HE.� A. FRAZIER 
ALFRED N. PADEN 

Defendants 

COUNT ONE 

The Grand Jury charges: 

1. That from October i,. 1962, up to and including 

October 23, 1962, in the Middle District of' Tennessee, Nashville 

Division, and elsewhere, ALBERT P. COLE, HERMAN A. FRAZIER, 

and ALFRED N. PADEN, defendants herein, and diverse other 

persons whose names to the Grand Jury are unknown, did un­

lawfully, wilfully and knowingly conspire, -combine, _confederate, 

and agree to commit an offense against the United States,. 

to wit: to violate Title 18, United States Code, Section 1503, 

in that the said defendants and co-conspirators did combine, 

conspire, confederate, and agree corruptly to endeavor to 

influence, obstruct and impede the due administration of' 

justice in the United States District Court for the Middle 

· District of' Tennessee, Nashville Division. 

2. That it was part of' said conspiracy to colillilunicate 

with persons who, as the said defendants and co-conspirators 

•then and there well knew, had theretofore been summoned to 

report on October 22, 1962, for jury service on the petit 

jury venire of' the United States District Court for the 

Middle ·District of' Tennessee, Nashville Division, and, by false 



representations, to obtain from the said prospective petit 

jurors information as to the feelings and opinions of the said 

prospective petit jurors concerning the case of United States v. 

James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 

13,241), which case was set for trial in the United States 

District Court for the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville 

Division, on October 22, 1962. 

OVERT ACTS 

In furtherance of the said conspiracy and to effect 

the objects thereof, ·the said defendants and co-conspirators 

in the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, did 

com.�it, among others, the following overt acts: 

1. On or about October 21, 1962, ALBERT P. COLE, 

HERMAN A. FRAZIER, and ALFRED N. PADEN, defendants herein, 

registered and took rooms at the Noel Hotel in Nashville, 

Tennessee. 

2. On or about October 21, 1962, HERMAN A. FRAZIER, 

a defendant herein, made a telephone call to William B. Morgan, 

a prospective petit juror in the case of United States v. 

James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 

13,241). 

3. On or about October 21, 1962, HER!1AN A. FRAZIER, 
I 

a defendant herein, made a telephone call to Nick Stuart, Jr., 

.a prospective petit juror in the case of United States v. 

James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No; 

13,241). 
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4. On or about October 21, 1962, HERYiAN A. FRAZIER, 

a defendant herein, made a telephone call to Mrs. Irene Smith, 

a prospective juror in the case of United States v. James R. 

Hoffa and Comr.iercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 13,241). 

5 .. On or about October 21, 1962, ALFRED N. PADEN, 

a defendant herein, made a telephone call to Mrs. J.B. Branham, 

a prospective petit juror in the case of United States v. 

James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. ·13,241). 

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.) 

COUNT TWO 

The Grand.Jury further charges: 

That on or about October 21, 1962, in the Middle 

District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, ALBERT P. COLE, 

HERMAN A. FRAZIER, and ALFRED N. PADEN, defendants herein, did . 

unlawfully, knowingly, wilfully and corruptly endeavor to 

influence, obstruct and impede the due administration of 

justice in the United States District Court for the Middle 

District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, in that the said 

defendants did unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and corruptly 

communicate by telephone with Mrs. J.B. Branham, W. E. Erranton, 

William B. Morgan, Mrs. Lillian Roberts, Nick Stuart, Jr., 

Mrs. Carr Payne, Mrs. D. M. Harrison, Jr.,.Mrs. Fred Graves, 

Mrs. Irene Smith, and Mrs. Leonard McGugin, and others whose 

names �o the Grand Jury are unknown, all of whom, as the said 

defendants then and there well knew, had been summoned for jury 

service on the 'petit jury venire of the United States District 

Court for the Middle District of Tennessee, �ashville Division, 
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and did endeavor to obtain from the said prospective petit 

jurors, by false representations, information as to the feelings 

and opinions of the said prospective petit jurors concerning 

the trial of United States v. James R. Hoffa and Commercial 

Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 13,241), wnich was set for trial 

on October 22, 1962. 

{Title'l8, United States Code, Section 1503.) 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR 
THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF TENNESSEE 

NASHVIl..LE DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
Plaintiff 

Criminal No.
------

ALLEN OORFMAN 
JAMES. R. HOFFA 
NICHOLAS J. TWEEL 
EWING KlllG 

Defendants 

COUNT ONE 

The Grand Jury charges: 

1. That .from on or about September 1, 1962, 

up to an including December 22, 1962, in the Middle District 

of Tennessee, Nashville Division, and elsewhere, ALLEN 

OORFMAN, JAMES R. HOFFA, and NICHOLAS J. 'IWEEL, defendants 

herein, did unlawfully, wilfully and knowingly combine, 

conspire:, con.federate and agree together, and with divers.a 

ot�er persons whose names to the Grand Jury are unknown, 

to commit offenses against the United States, to wit: to 

violate Title 18, United State� Code, Section 1503, in that 

the said defendants and co-conspirators did combine, conspire, 

con.federate and agree together corruptly to endeavor to 

influence, obstruct and impede the due admintstration of 

justice in the United States District Court .for the Middle 

District of Tennessee, Nashville Division. 

2. That it was pa.rt of said conspiracy corruptly 

to cause unauthorized communications to be ma.de with petit 



�f' 
� � 

jurors who, on October 25, 1962, had been impaneled in the 

United States District Court for the Middle District of 

Tennessee, Nashville Division, in the case of United States v. 

James.R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 

13,241), with respect to the said jurors' actions, votes, 

opinions and decisions·concerning the said trial before 

the return of the verdict. 

3. That it was a further part of said conspiracy 

to learn the identity of persons who were acquainted with 

petit jurors who, on October 25, 1962, had been impaneled in 

the said case, and of persons who could, by communication 

with the said petit jurors, influence, intimidate and impede 

the said petit jurors'in the discharge of their duties in the 

said case. 

OVERT ACTS 

In furtherance of the said conspiracy and to effect 

the objects thereof, the said defendants and co-conspirators 

committed, among others, the following overt acts: 

1. On or about Octob_er 21, 1962, in the Middle 

District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, NICHOLAS J. TWEEL, 

a defendant herein, registered at and took a room in the 

Andrew Jackson Hotel in Nashville, Tennessee. 

2. On or about October 22, 1962, in the Middle 

District of Tenn�ssee, Nashville Division, NICHOLAS J. TWEEL, 

a defendant herein, had a conversation with Dallas Hall. 

3. In or about the month of November 1962, in 

the Southern District of West Virginia, NICHOLAS J. TWEEL, a 

defendant herein, made a telephone call to Dallas Hall, who 
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was then within the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville 

Division. 

4. On or about November 27, 1962, in the Middle 

District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, ALLEN .OORFMAN and 

JAMES R. HOFFA, defendants herein,. entered the Louisville and 

Nashville Railroad Union Station located at Tenth Street and 

Broadway in Nashville, Tennessee. 

5. On or about November 27, 1962, in the Southern 

District of West Virginia, NICHOLAS J. TWEEL, a defendant 

herein, made a telephone call to Dallas Hall, who was then 

within the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville Division. 

(Title 18, United �tates Code, Section 371.) 

COUNT TWO 

The Grand.Jury further charges: 

That on or about November 27, 1962, in the Southern 

District of West Virginia and in the Middle District of 

Tennessee, Nashville Division, ALLEN .OORFMAN, JAMES R. HOFFA 

and NICHOLAS J. TWEEL, defendants herein, did unlawfully, 

knowingly, wilfully and corruptly endeavor to influence, obstruct 

and impede the due administration of justice in the United 

States District Court for the Middle District of Tennessee, 

Nashville Division, in that the said defendants did offer a 

thing of value End a brib3 to Dallas Hall for. the purpose of . 

causing the said Da.llas·Hall tolearn the identity of persons 

who could communicate with petit jurors theretofore impaneled 

in the United States District Court for the Middle District 

of Tennessee, Nashville Division, in the case of United States v. 

James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 

13,241)� with respect to the said jurors' actions, votes, 
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opinions and decisions concerning the said trial before the 

return of the verdict. 

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 1503.) 

COUNT Tirn.EE 

The Grand Jury further charges: 

1. That from on or about September 1, 1962, up to 

and including December 6, 1962, in the Middle District of 

Tennessee, Nashville Division, JAME.5 R. HOFFA and EWING KING, 

defendants herein, and George Broda, Oscar V. Pitts, Paul B. 

Tenpenny, and Robert Wilkerson, co-conspirators but not 

defendants herein, did unlawfully, wilfully, and knowingly 

combine, conspire, confederate and agree together, arrl with 

diverse other persons whose names to the Grand Jury are unknown, 

to commit offenses against the United States, to wit: to 

:violate Title 18, United States Code, Section 1503, in that 

the said defendants and co-conspirators did combine, conspire, 

confederate and agree corruptly to endeavor to influence, 

intimidate and impede a petit juror of th� United States 

District Court for the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville 

Division, in the discharge of her duty. 

2. That it was part of said conspiracy corruptly 

to endeavor to. influence, intimidate and impede, in the discharge 

of her duty as a petit juror of the United States District 

Court; .Mrs. James M. Paschal, who on or about October 25, 1962, 

was sworn as Regular Juror Number 9 for the trial of United 

States v. James R. Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal 

No. 13,241), in the United States District Court for the Middle 

District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, as the said defendants 

and co-conspirators then and there well knew. 
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3. That it was further part of said conspiracy 

that Ew.CNG KING, a defendant herein, ·meet with James M. Paschal, 

the husband of the said Mrs.· James M. Paschal, and that the 

said tw!NG KING offer to James M. Paschal a thing of value and 

a bribe for the purpose of ca.using said•James M. Paschal to 

influence, intimidate and impede the said Mrs. James M. Paschal 

in the discharge of her duty as a petit juror. 

OVERT ACTS 

In furtherance of the said conspiracy and to effect 

the objects thereof, the said defendants and co-conspirators 

in the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, 

committed, among others, the following overt acts: 

1. On or about October 27, 1962, :IllvING KING, 

a defendant herein, drove to the residence of Oscar V. Pitts, 

a co-conspirator but not a defendant herein, which is located 

in or around Woodbury, Tennessee. 

2. On or about November 6, 1962, EWING KING, a 

defendant herein, had a conversation with Paul B. Tenpenny, 

a co-conspirator but not a defendant herein. 

3. On or about N'ovember 17, 1962, EWING KING, 

a defendant herein, and George Broda, a ·co-conspirator but not 

a defendant herein, exchanged automobiles with each other. 

4. On or about November 18, 1962, Oscar V. Pitts, 

a co-conspirator but not a defendant herein, drove to the 

home of James M. Paschal in Woodbury, Tenness�e, in an auto­

mobile belonging to George Broda, a co-conspirator but not a 

defendant herein. 
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S. On or about November 18, 1962, in the vicinity 

of Woodbury, Tennessee, EWillG KillG, a defendant herein, met 

James M. Paschal, the husband of Mrs. James M. Paschal, and 

had a conversation with the said James M. Paschal. 

(Title 18, United States Code, Section Jn.) 

COUNT FOUR 

• The Grand Jury further charges: 

1. That on or about November 18, 1962, in the Middle 

District of Tennessee, Nashville Division, JAMES R. HOFFA and 

EWING Kil1G, defendants herein, did unlawfully, knowingly and 

corruptly endeavor to influence, intimidate and impede a petit 

juror of the United States District Court in the discharge 

of her duty, to wit: Mrs. James M. Paschal who, then was, ··and 

was then and there known to the said defendants to be, serving 

as a petit juror in the case of United States v. James R. Hoffa 

and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 13,241), in that the 

said EWING Kmo, a defendant herei�, did meet with James M. 

Paschal, the husband of the said Mrs. James M. Paschal, and did 

offer to James M. Paschal a thing of value and a bribe for the 

purpose of causing said James M. Pas�hal to influence, intimidate 

and impede the said Mrs. James M. Paschal in the discharge of 

her duty as a petit juror. 

2. That in or about the months of October and 

November 1962; in the Middle District of Tennessee, Nashville 

Division, JAMES R. HOFFA, a defendant herein, did unlawfully, 

knowingly, wilfully and corruptly aid, abet; counsel, command 
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induce and procure the said EWING KillG, a defendant herein, 

corruptly to endeavor to influence, intimidate and impede the 

said Mrs, James M. Paschal who then was and was known to 

the said JA11ES R. HOFFA to be, on the petit jury venire of 

the Un!ted States District Court for the Middle District of 

Tennesse�, Nashville Division, from which petit jurors were 

to be selected for the trial of United States v. James R. 

Hoffa and Commercial Carriers, Inc. (Criminal No. 13,241), 

in the discharge of her duty with respect to the said trial, 

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2 and 1$03.) 
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